
October 16, 2024 

Sent via E-Mail 

Mayor Brigette Peterson 

Town of Gilbert 

50 E. Civic Center Drive 

Gilbert, AZ 85296 

brigette.peterson@gilbertaz.gov 

councilmembers@gilbertaz.gov 

mayor@gilbertaz.gov 

Re: Gilbert’s Electioneering 

Dear Mayor Peterson and Members of the Council: 

Gilbert has sent two measures to voters ahead of the November 2024 General Election. The 

first, Proposition 497, is a permanent base adjustment to Gilbert’s state-imposed expenditure limit. 

The second, Proposition 498, would exclude capital improvement projects from the expenditure 

limit. Gilbert has been engaging in a campaign on social media—including through the Instagram 

handle “@gilbertyourtown”— and through mailers in advance of the election with the ostensible 

purpose of “informing” voters. This campaign, however, has crossed the line from information to 

advocacy. 

As you likely know, Arizona law prohibits the use of public resources for the purpose of 

influencing the outcomes of elections. See A.R.S. § 9-500.14. Section 9-500.14 defines resources 

to include “the use or expenditure of monies, accounts, credit, facilities, vehicles, postage, 

telecommunications, computer hardware and software, web pages, personnel, equipment, 

materials, buildings or any other thing of value of the city or town.” (emphasis added). 

“[I]nfluenc[e] the outcomes of elections” means “supporting or opposing a ballot measure, 

question or proposition … in any manner that is not impartial or neutral.” Id (emphasis added).  

Both the videos that Gilbert has created and posted to its social media sites and the recent 

mailer sent to Gilbert voters are neither impartial nor neutral. For example, the most recent social 

media video posted on October 2, 2024, and “pinned”1 to the top of the feed, attempts to influence 

1 Pinned posts remain at the top of a profile to ensure they are the first things visitors see when 

they view your profile. 
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voters to approve the propositions by showing voters how long it has been since the last base 

adjustment in 1998. It does this by including clips of what was occurring in 1998—the launch of 

the International Space Station, the launch of Google, and Brittany Spears’s debut album. The 

video’s use of clips from 1998 are intended to give voters the impression of just how long ago 

1998 was, implying that passage of an expenditure increase is needed. It then goes on to describe 

how much Gilbert has grown, including the addition of two new public libraries, three new pools, 

eight new parks, eleven new fire stations and all the “upgrades” Gilbert has done to roads, critical 

infrastructure, the water treatment plant and “so much more.” After telling voters they could vote 

“no” the video goes on to list the negatives—and only the negatives—of voting no on the measures, 

like the inability to fund certain projects and delayed repairs. The video does not present any 

argument against the propositions. There is no mention of the benefits that will result from voting 

“no” on the measures. This video is neither impartial nor neutral and is therefore prohibited 

electioneering. 

This is not the only offending video. Another, posted to Instagram on June 5, 2024, also 

advocates for the passage of both propositions. This video focuses on the benefits of passing both 

propositions, but none of the benefits of voting against the propositions. This video received a 

public comment asking where they can find the “cons” and Gilbert responded that more 

information about pro/con statements would be forthcoming—a tacit admission that the video did 

not contain a “con” argument. Exhibit 1.  

Gilbert’s electioneering activities have not been limited to social media; the Town has also 

spent resources sending mailers to Gilbert voters. A recent mailer is attached as Exhibit 2 and 

exemplifies this electioneering. The mailer, like the videos, includes a list of all the good things 

Gilbert has done since 1998, and all the benefits of voting yes, including “more local control over 

Town spending” and avoiding “interest and repayment costs associated with bonding.” It then ends 

with the negatives of voting no without addressing the positives of rejecting the propositions. 

Again, like the video, the mailer is neither impartial nor neutral. 

The Attorney General released an opinion in 2015 interpreting Section 9-500.14. The 

opinion explained that for a measure to be impartial and neutral it must be free from any misleading 

tendency, whether amplification, omission, or fallacy, and rhetorical strategy should not be used.2 

Both posts fail under this analysis. 

In light of this, under Section 9-500.14(E), we have asked the County Attorney to further 

investigate use of these public resources as a potential violation of A.R.S. § 9-500.14. 

We appreciate your prompt and thoughtful consideration of these matters and look forward 

to receiving confirmation that Gilbert will remove the electioneering videos and cease the use of 

mailers that advocate for the passage of these prohibitions. 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to 

contact me directly at ashelton@goldwaterinstitute.org or 602-462-5000.  

2 https://www.azag.gov/sites/default/files/2018-06/R15-002_Amended.pdf. 
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Regards, 

Adam Shelton 

Staff Attorney   

Scharf-Norton Center for Constitutional Litigation 

at the Goldwater Institute 

C.C. 

Hon. Rachel Mitchell 

Maricopa County Attorney 

225 West Madison 

Phoenix, AZ 85003 

maricopacountyattorney@mcao.maricopa.gov 

Vice Mayor Scott Anderson 

Scott.Anderson@gilbertaz.gov 

Councilmember Kathy Tilque 

kathy.tilque@gilbertaz.gov 

Councilmember Chuck Bongiovanni 

chuck.bongiovanni@gilbertaz.gov 

Councilmember Yung Koprowski 

yung.koprowski@gilbertaz.gov 

Councilmember Bobbi Buchli 

bobbi.buchli@gilbertaz.gov 

Councilmember Jim Torgerson 

jim.torgeson@gilbertaz.gov 

Town Manage Patrick Banger 

Patrick.Banger@gilbertaz.gov 
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EXHIBIT 2 


